
 If you need us to do anything differently (reasonable adjustments) to help you 
access our services, including providing this information in another language or 
format, please contact democraticsupport@northtyneside.gov.uk 

 

 
 

 

Caring Sub-
committee 

 
Wednesday, 19 July 2023 
 
Thursday, 27 July 2023 0.01 Chamber - Quadrant, The Silverlink North, Cobalt 
Business Park, North Tyneside, NE27 0BY commencing at 6.00 pm. 

 
Agenda 

Item 
 

 Page 
 

 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

 
2.   Appointment of Substitute Members 

 
To be notified of the appointment of Substitute Members. 
 

 

 
3.   Declarations of Interest or Dispensations 

 
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non 
registerable interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and 
the nature of that interest. 
  
You are also invited to disclose any dispensation in relation to 
any registerable and/or non-registerable interests that have 
been granted to you in respect of any matters appearing on 
the agenda. 
  
Please complete the Declarations of Interests card available at 
the meeting and return it to the Democratic Services Officer 
before leaving the meeting. 

 

 

Public Document Pack



Agenda 
Item 

 

 Page 

 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
 
To Confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 15 June 2023. 
 

5 - 8 

 
5.   Overview of Public Health and Health and Wellbeing 

 
To receive an overview of the Public Health and Health and 
Wellbeing service area from the Director of Public Health. 
 

 

 
6.   Healthwatch North Tyneside - Annual report and update 

 
To receive an update from Healthwatch North Tyneside, 
following the publication of the Annual Report. 
  
The following documents are attached: 
  

       What we’ve heard during 2022-23 – summary report 
       Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23 

  
 

9 - 36 

 
7.   Caring Sub-committee - Work Programme 

 
To consider priorities for inclusion in the Work programme for 
2023-24. 
 

 

Circulation overleaf …



 

 
 

Members of the Caring Sub-committee  
 

Councillor Jane Shaw (Chair) Councillor Michelle Fox (Deputy Chair) 
Councillor Mrs Linda Arkley OBE Councillor Gary Bell 
Councillor Julie Cruddas Councillor Tracy Hallway 
Councillor Andy Holdsworth Councillor Joe Kirwin 
Councillor Louise Marshall Councillor Pam McIntyre 
Councillor Martin Murphy Councillor Tricia Neira 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Caring Sub-committee 

 
Thursday, 15 June 2023 

 
Present:  Councillor J Shaw (Chair) 

  Councillors M Fox, L Arkley, G Bell, J Cruddas, 
A Holdsworth, L Marshall, P McIntyre, M Murphy, 
T Neira and T Mulvenna 

 
  In attendance: Councillor Janet Hunter, Cabinet 

Member for Adult Social Care 
 

Apologies:  Councillors T Hallway and J Kirwin 
  
C1/23 Appointment of Substitute Members 

 
Pursuant to the Council's Constitution, the appointment of the following substitute 
members was reported: 
  
 Cllr T Mulvenna for Cllr T Hallway 
 
  
C2/23 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 
  
C3/23 Adult Social Care - Overview and Strategic Priorities 

 
The sub-committee received a presentation which set out an overview of the 
adult social care service area and the strategic priorities for 2023/24. 
  
The service area covers a wide range of services for adults, including the Adults 
Gateway, Care Point and Integrated Care Services, Community Wellbeing and 
Assessment Teams, Whole Life Disability, Adult Mental Health Services, Emergency 
Duty Team, Business Assurance and Adults Finance. 
  
The Sub-committee was informed that the service priorities for 2023/24 are 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Caring Sub-committee 
 

2 
Thursday, 15 June 2023 

focussed on the following eight areas: 
  

       Service improvement and development 
       Workforce development and support – including recruitment and retention 
       Carer support 
       Feedback and participation from people with lived experience 
       Access to information and choice 
       Collaboration and equality 
       Improving ASC leadership and processes – including the development of a 

medium term strategy for Adult Social Care 
       CQC inspection readiness 
  
The presentation also set out some of the current pressures and risks in Adult 
Social Care.  These included: 
  
-        Increasing demand – including demand from hospital discharges, new 

high cost complex clients moving from children’s services to adults, and 
increasing poverty and mental health needs; 
  

-        Workforce issues - recruitment and retention remains a significant issue 
leading to higher caseloads for staff and competition for social workers 
and occupational therapists; 

  
-        Issues in the Care Market – including the availability and cost of care 

provision, availability of home care services due to staffing capacity, and 
inflation cost pressures for providers; 

  
-        on-going work to prepare for future risks - understanding the budget 

position for 2023/24, managing the care market, including market 
sustainability plans and fee negotiations, and changes to legislation and 
mental health reforms. 

  
It was noted that the service was also preparing for an inspection from the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) which is expected in the Autumn.  This includes taking 
forward actions following a recent positive peer review challenge. 
  
Members thanked officers for the presentation and noted the comprehensive 
plan covering a wide range of areas. 

Page 6



Caring Sub-committee 
 

3 
Thursday, 15 June 2023 

In relation to capacity, it was noted that the priority areas are linked to a strategic 
plan with clear milestones and actions allocated to each Assistant Director 
across the service area. Service leads are also working closely with other service 
areas across the Council on cross cutting issues, such as working with the People 
Team on recruitment and retention. 
  
There was some discussion about workforce issues and it was noted that there 
are concerns, both within the Council, and in the adult social care sector more 
widely, in relation to an ageing workforce, with many staff over the age of 55.  It 
was explained that a range of action is being to address this including a review of 
career pathways and the development of the Care Academy.  In addition, the 
Council has been looking to recruit retired experienced social workers and 
occupational therapists in roles to help with the training and mentoring of newly 
qualified staff. 
  
The Sub-committee noted the focus on increasing the take up of direct 
payments and highlighted the impact this could have on the small team which 
supports direct payments.  It was noted that a review of the direct payments 
service was currently under way and actions will feed into improvements to the 
advice and information available to support take up. 
  
There was some discussion about the Care Academy and its aim to provide care 
courses and training, as well as information about vacancies within the Council 
and the private sector.  It was noted that there are plans in place to recruit a co-
ordinator to further develop the Care Academy.  It was also noted that the 
Council is working closely with the independent care sector in relation to the Care 
Academy, with the Care Academy funded by the Council, but with the aim of 
supporting the wider care system, both internally and across the independent 
sector, for the benefit of residents in North Tyneside. 
  
  
 
  
C4/23 Introduction to Scrutiny and Work Programme Report 

 
The Sub-committee considered the report which set out a proposed approach to 
work planning for the Caring Sub-committee for 2023-24, together with 
background information to help the Sub-committee consider and decide on its 

Page 7



Caring Sub-committee 
 

4 
Thursday, 15 June 2023 

outline work programme for 2023-24. 
  
The Sub-committee considered the suggested topics set out in Appendix C to the 
report which had been identified by Cabinet Members and lead Senior 
Leadership Team officers. 
  
Members identified the following areas as policy topics they would like to 
prioritise for the work programme: 
  

       Recruitment and retention of social workers in Adult Social Care and risks 
and actions in relation to high case loads 

       Recruitment and retention across the care sector 
       Direct Payments – opportunities and potential risks 
       Support for Carers and Carers’ health and wellbeing needs 
       Use of technology to support care 
       Hospital discharge and re-ablement 
       Breast Screening and how to address the lower rates of take-up in North 

Tyneside 
       National Suicide Prevention Strategy and local implications 
       Drug and Alcohol Residential Rehab Pathway (could be linked with item on 

suicide prevention) 
  
The Sub-committee agreed: 
  

       that the above priorities would provide an outline work programme for the 
year ahead. 

  
       that the work programme will be included as a standard agenda item at 

each future meeting of the Sub-committee. 
 
  

Page 8



Summary of feedback Healthwatch North Tyneside have received 
from North Tyneside residents over the past 12 months.

June 2023

What we’ve heard during 2022/23 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



2

At Healthwatch North Tyneside, we collect general feedback from local people 
on their experiences of health and social care services. Residents can talk to us 
and share their experiences in several ways:

Talk to Us

Championing what matters to you   |   Healthwatch North Tyneside |  What We Heard 2022-23

From April 22 to March 23

Page 10



3

Championing what matters to you   |   Healthwatch North Tyneside | What We Heard 2022-23

Common Themes We Identified 

Quality of care is high – Generally people tell us that 
they value the quality of care and score this highly 
when they are able to receive it.

Staff are doing their best – People appreciate 
pressures on staff and for the most part think that 
staff are doing a very good job. There are some 
amazing examples of staff going above and beyond 
to provide support. 

Access to information– People tell us they often 
struggle to know what support is available and how 
to access it. They want high quality information 
available online and in writing as well as being able 
to talk to someone if they need to. 

Waiting, delays and cancellations are an issue – We 
heard that a lot of people are facing delays. In our 
annual survey, 50% of respondents told us that their 
treatment or care had been affected by delays, 
cancellations or other problems with access. Waiting 
times are a real concern within some specialisms 
and services. We are getting a picture of real 
challenges within particular services.

Connected and integrated services – people tell us 
that more can be done to connect up support 
between different health and/or care services so that 
their care, and their family/carer’s situation, is seen 
holistically. This includes sharing information, 
assessments and referral systems. 

Here are some of the common themes in the views and feedback residents 
shared with us. We know that different services have their own ways of 
working. We also see that a specific service can work really well for one 
person, and another person might feel they have had a terrible experience 
with the service. By hearing from lots of different people common issues 
become clear. 

Page 11



4

Championing what matters to you   |   Healthwatch North Tyneside | What We Heard 2022-23

Choice is important – We are increasingly hearing 
that people want to have a choice in the way they 
interact with services (face to face, online and over 
the phone). They will choose what they think is the 
most appropriate method of contact for them 
depending on their confidence, ability, access to 
technology and the issue being dealt with. For many 
people, convenience is a major factor in how they 
access services, balancing work, family commitments 
and their own resources etc. 

Cost of living is impacting on health and wellbeing –
Whilst many people have told us that cost of living 
has had limited impact, others have shared very 
difficult stories about cutting their heating; becoming 
virtually housebound because they cannot afford to 
participate in activities; cancelling gym memberships 
and not being able to afford swimming and other 
wellbeing activities; struggling to access 
nutritious/high quality food and major impacts on 
stress and mental health.  

Transport continues to be a concern for many – Cost 
of living impacts and affordability has been 
highlighted as well as the reliability of and access to 
public transport. Travel to hospitals has been a 
particular problem, but we also hear of difficulties in 
accessing more local services (GP, pharmacy etc). 

Some people are paying for private treatment 
because of delays – Several people have told us that 
they have paid for private treatment at NHS and 
private facilities, due to waiting times and delays. 

People say they think services are getting worse –
Over 50% of respondents to our annual survey told us 
they felt services last year were worse than the 
previous year. It seems many people expect services 
not to work well and are resigned to poorer quality 
than they would like. When we talk to people, national 
news stories have an impact on their views.Page 12



5

Championing what matters to you   |   Healthwatch North Tyneside | What We Heard 2022-23

Feedback on Specific Services
GPs

• We hear more about GPs than any other service 
• There was a very mixed response about getting appointments, 

with many people telling us they had no issues getting an 
appointment when they need one, whereas others struggled to be 
seen in a timely manner. Despite the delays, people were 
generally happy with the service once they were seen.

• We see that each GP practice operates differently, and their 
approaches work better for some people than others. This includes 
appointment booking systems. We hear a lot about delays in 
answering phones. 

• People really want to be able to choose the type of appointment 
they have – face to face, phone or video. People say they often 
know what support they need and can make this choice. 

• Some people really like to access services online (including 
getting test results, booking appointments and ordering 
prescriptions). Other people feel excluded or forced by doing this 
online. 

Hospitals

• Long waiting lists for operations and cancellations of 
appointments were an issue and people asked for improved 
communication regarding next steps and follow-up.

• People generally felt that waiting times were satisfactory while in 
the hospital but waiting areas could be improved, with access to 
sensory rooms.

• Residents felt hospital parking charges were too high and spaces 
were often not available while others raised issues of limited 
public transport and difficulties in travelling to hospitals.

Urgent and Emergency Care

• People felt waiting times in all areas of urgent and emergency 
care were excessive and could benefit from a better triage system.

• Transport options for patients were limited, especially out of hours.
• NHS111 was generally reliable, however, some users felt the scripts 

could be too long with too many unnecessary questions and 
inaccurate signposting, which caused delays.

Page 13



6

Championing what matters to you   |   Healthwatch North Tyneside | What We Heard 2022-23

Dentists 

• There are ongoing issues with a lack of NHS dentists taking on new patients, 
as well as access to appointments generally. Some residents reported 
being removed from their NHS practice lists without notice. 

• Where people can get appointments, they would like more availability 
outside working hours, but generally found the parking facilities and text 
reminders convenient.

• Residents would like to see the cost of private treatment and NHS payment 
tiers reduced.

Mental Health

• NHS and voluntary sector counselling was highly regarded, although there 
were reported gaps with peer support and general support with the root 
causes of mental health issues. 

• Talking Therapies, CAMHS, psychiatric care and alternative therapies were 
highlighted for having long waiting lists and adults and children generally 
struggle to get a diagnosis.  Young people also face a general lack of 
support outside of schools and CAMHS and an over reliance on 
medicalisation. 

• While many people highlighted difficulties with accessing mental health 
services, there was some praise for the Community Treatment Team and 
self referral to Talking Therapies can work well. 

Pharmacies

• People shared that they could easily access services and rated them 
highly, but there was some concerns about lack of privacy and the likely 
closure of some pharmacies. 

• Feedback praised the availability of text reminders but wanted the 
convenience of more out of hours opening.

• Pharmacy users expressed added value in extra services such as 
vaccinations and prescriptions direct from their GP, however stock 
shortages, communication issues and waiting times could be problematic.

We also heard from residents on several other areas of health and care that 
mattered to them. Here are some highlights from their feedback:

In Maternity and Child Health it’s important to have continuity of care in 
maternity, health visiting and services for children with additional needs. Some 
families feel ‘forgotten about.’ This feeling was shared by Autistic Adults, who 
highlighted an ongoing lack of support and delays in diagnostic services. Those 
who spoke to us about Sexual Health services would like online and walk-in 
appointments and a more comforting environment for distressed patients. We 
also received a relatively smaller, but still important, amount of feedback on 
Audiology, Screening, Opticians, Drug & Alcohol and Social Care services.Page 14



7

Championing what matters to you   |   Healthwatch North Tyneside | What We Heard 2022-23

Who we Heard From

• We provide direct feedback to individual services, showing 
what residents and service users have said about their 
service and other similar services. 

• We share trends and analysis with key decision makers, 
including NHS and social care commissioners.  

• We highlight possible solutions to problems based on what 
we have heard from local people.

• We formally report to North Tyneside’s Health and Wellbeing 
Board every 6 months to highlight resident’s issues. 

• We share highlights with the North East and North Cumbria 
Integrated Care Board to influence decisions across the 
region. 

• We share our anonymised information and reports with 
Healthwatch England to help influence decisions Nationally. 

• We use what people have told us to identify key issues we 
should focus our work programme for the next year – you 
can see our priorities for 2023/24 at www.hwnt.co.uk

Our research projects in 2022-2023
During this year, we have also published detailed reports on the following 
issues that people raised with us in the previous year. You can access these 
at www.healthwatchnorthtyneside.co.uk/reports

• Breast screening
• Digital inclusion
• Health inequalities
• Pharmacy
• Outpatient appointments
• Carers - adults and young carers

What we do with this Feedback

Page 15

http://www.hwnt.co.uk/
http://www.healthwatchnorthtyneside.co.uk/reports


Registered Charity Number 1160753

Healthwatch North Tyneside
Spirit of North Tyneside Community Hub
2nd Floor Wallsend Customer First Centre
16 The Forum
Wallsend
NE28 8JR

www.hwnt.co.uk
t: 0191 263 5321
e: info@hwnt.co.uk
       @HWNTyneside
   Facebook.com/HealthwatchNT
       healthwatchnt
       www.linkedin.com/company/healthwatch-north-tyneside

Page 16



1Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Championing what  
matters to you
Healthwatch North Tyneside 
Annual Report 2022-23 Page 17



2 Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Message from our Chair 3

About Us 4

Our Year in Review 5

Information and Support 6

Improving Access to Information 7

How We Have Helped Individuals 8

Improving Health and Care Services in North Tyneside 9

Service User Voice in Decision Making 15

Volunteers 16

Finance and Future Priorities 18

Our Work for the Year Ahead 19

Contents

Healthwatch North Tyneside uses the Healthwatch Trademark when undertaking our 
activities as covered by the licence agreement with Healthwatch England

Page 18



3Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

It’s been a very busy, but productive year 
for Healthwatch North Tyneside. We have 
heard the views of more people than ever 
before and that’s testament to the hard 
work of all our staff and volunteers.

Our job is to listen to as many varied groups of 
people as possible about the health and social 
care services they receive, and then use that 
information to influence decision makers to 
improve their services accordingly.

Sometimes this has very direct results, such as 
reporting on challenges people had getting Covid 
vaccinations at convenient times and places, 
which resulted in 16 pop-up clinics being set up. 

Sometimes our impact is less tangible or 
immediate, such as our long term work on digital 
inclusion which began during the pandemic and has seen a new, wide ranging, digital 
inclusion strategy developed, or our work keeping transport to health and community 
facilities on local agendas.

Not only do we speak to residents in many different ways - personal interviews, 
focus groups and research projects, but we also work closely with other community 
organisations across the borough to hear more varied views and co-design solutions. 
We thank them for their support and valuable insights.

We have also received extra funding from North Tyneside Council and the North East 
and North Cumbria Integrated Care Board to work on specific engagement projects, 
and again are very grateful for their confidence in our work as a critical friend and for 
valuing our independence. 

All this would not be possible without the input of all the people we have talked 
to over the year, who have given us honest feedback and helpful suggestions 
for improving services. I thank them, and our hardworking staff, volunteers and 
trustees who have made us the well respected organisation I hope we are.

Message from our Chair

“In the last ten years. The health and care landscape has changed 
dramatically, but the dedication of local Healthwatch hasn’t. Healthwatch 
North Tyneside has worked tirelessly to make sure the views of local 
people are heard, and NHS and social care leaders use your feedback to 
make care better.” Louise Ansari, Healthwatch England National Director

Page 19



4 Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

About Us

Your health and social care champion.

Healthwatch North Tyneside is your local health and social care champion. We make 
sure health and social care leaders and other decision makers hear your voice 
and use your feedback to improve care. We can also help you to find reliable and 
trustworthy information and advice. 

We help to shape and improve local health and social care services. We want to show 
how people’s experiences can transform services for the better; and to demonstrate 
how good engagement can provide solutions to challenges facing the NHS and care 
services in the years ahead. 

Who we are
Healthwatch North Tyneside is a small independent charity. 
We are locally based, and our trustees, staff and volunteers 
are from the area. 

Our work is funded by a service delivery contract with 
North Tyneside Council or through grants or contracts with 
commissioners, providers or grant funders.

We are part of a network of over 150 local Healthwatch, 
who operate in every local authority area in England. This 
network was established by the Health and Social Care Act 
2012, with the aim of putting patients and the public first. 

Our vision
People’s experiences, views and needs are sought, valued, 
and acted upon as part of the planning and delivery of 
health and care support in North Tyneside.

Our mission
To champion the experiences, views, values and needs of 
local people to positively affect the health and social care 
services in North Tyneside. 

Page 20



5Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Our Year in Review

Reaching out

Making a difference

Health and care that works for you

3,579 people shared their views and experiences of health 
and care services with us, helping us to raise awareness of 
issues and improve care. 

We held 98 community outreach events and 
spoke to 2,628 people about the role of Healthwatch. 

Over 1,500 people and 30 organisations shared their 
views about health inequalities and/or digital inclusion for 
separately commissioned projects.  

Some of the impacts we have had this year 

•  Residents’ views shaped the North Tyneside 
Equally Well Strategy. 

• Mental Health service users helped to identify and 
develop two new services for North Tyneside. 

• We identified the need for improved access to Covid-19 
vaccinations, resulting in 16 pop up clinics delivering 463 
vaccinations to local people. 

• We continued to work with the new NHS Integrated 
Care Board (IBC) to ensure user voice is embedded 
in their new governance arrangements and built new 
relationships across the North East and North Cumbria.

• We had 4.9 full time equivalent members  
of our staff team on average during the year. 

•  1,635 hours of volunteering thanks to our  
amazing team of Trustees and engagement, research  
and administration volunteers. 

• We received £151,940 of core contract funding  
to deliver the Healthwatch service in North Tyneside. 

Find out how we have engaged and supported people.

Page 21



Information and Support 
Providing health and care information is part of our 
remit and residents tell us access to high quality 
information is critical. We use feedback to identify gaps 
in information and work with commissioners and service 
providers to fill those gaps with accessible and useful 
information. 

We have also directly helped over 300 people to get the 
information or support they have required or wished to 
access.  

6 Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Page 22



7Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Information and Support Improving Access to Information

Information about issues and services
We worked with partners and service providers to 
produce a range of resources and information leaflets 
on issues that matter to people, including refreshing our 
popular mental health support in North Tyneside leaflet. 
In addition, we secured funds to work with service users to 
create new resources to help people know what support 
is available and where. These will be launched later in 
2023 and will be available online, through a new section 
of the Living well North Tyneside website and printed 
leaflets.

Our feedback centre service directory 
We have relaunched our online feedback centre which acts as a directory of Health 
and Care services in North Tyneside as well as giving residents the opportunity to 
leave their feedback and a star rating. 

Living well North Tyneside Website 
We are a proud member of the Living well North Tyneside partnership and we have 
worked closely with our partners to improve the content of the site and the way that it 
works. The updates to the site will be launched later in 2023. 

Living well North Tyneside Booklet 
95,000 copies of the third edition of the booklet were 
posted through letterboxes of every house in North 
Tyneside during March and April 2022. A further 3,000 
have since been distributed through services and 
community settings and at community events. We lead 
the production of these booklets and are working with 
partners to agree whether a fourth edition should be 
prepared in 2023. 

Launchpad
North Tyneside

Mental Health Support 
 in North Tyneside

Details of groups and services that you can 
contact to self-refer for support with your 
mental health needs.

Most of the services provide free support, 
however some may incur charges. Please 
contact the service directly to find out more.

Living Well North Tyneside | 1

Living WellLiving Well
North Tyneside

Information 
and advice 

about local health and care 
services and how you can keep 
you and your family living well.

Issue 3

Page 23



8 Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

How We Have Helped Individuals 

People contact us by calling our information line (0191 263 5321), via social media, 
our website contact form, emailing us (info@hwnt.co.uk) or at one of our face to 
face engagement events across North Tyneside. Here are some examples of how we 
have supported local people with their issues: 

Raising a problem  
We helped a North Shields couple to understand how to make a complaint about a 
private provider who had completed an autism assessment and a course of follow 
up support. The couple said they had ‘been forced to go private because of the NHS 
waiting times for adult autism assessments’. 

Breast screening appointments 
A Whitley Bay resident contacted us to find out when she would be called for her breast 
screening appointment given it had been more than 3 years since her last check. We 
contacted North Tyneside’s Public Health team to check for the latest information and 
they subsequently updated their webpage following delays to the roll out. 

Finding a dentist 
A resident from Wallsend was struggling to find a new NHS dentist following the closure 
of their practice.  We advised about all the ways she could look for available practices 
and put her in touch with a practice we knew were taking on new patients in Benton. 
We also provided her with information on the registration process. She was able to 
register with the new dentist and thanked us for our support.

Page 24



Improving Health and Care 
Services in North Tyneside
We believe services can’t make improvements without 
hearing your views. That’s why over the last year we 
have made listening to feedback from all areas of the 
community a priority. This allows us to understand the 
full picture, and feed this back to services and work with 
them to improve.

We are committed to being more open and updating 
people more regularly about the impact we are having. 
You can see more about what people told us in our 
general engagement 2022/23 here: www.hwnt.co.uk

9Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Page 25



10 Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

We decided to focus on the breast screening programme in North Tyneside as we 
heard that there was lower take up than in previous years and local residents told 
us that the programme wasn’t working as well as before. We heard from 314 people 
about their experiences of the service. 

We worked closely with the Public Health team at North Tyneside Council and 
providers to provide regular feedback about what people were telling us and highlight 
ways services could be improved. Several changes were implemented during the 
time this survey was open, some of which were  as a direct result of the feedback we 
gathered. 

Breast Screening 

Most people told us that they were grateful to have access to the screening 
service and felt the overall service was good. However, during the research 
we identified several opportunities to improve the service and make it more 
accessible. This included:

• Changing the way that the invitation system worked, moving towards a 
system where people were given an appointment rather than being asked to 
contact the service to make an appointment. 

• Arranging for free parking at North Tyneside General Hospital whilst someone 
was visiting the mobile screening unit. 

• Highlighted that some people who had moved GP practices might have 
missed out on being invited for an appointment. 

We made 10 suggested actions as a result of 
this research which are being considered by 
North Tyneside’s Cancer Prevention Network 
and we have shared these with Healthwatch 
England as some potentially have national 
implications. 

Page 26



11Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Outpatients 

Vaccine Inequalities 

NHS England is encouraging the rollout of patient initiated follow up approaches to 
outpatient appointments. This gives patients the opportunity to arrange follow up 
appointments themselves as and when needed, rather than following a fixed set of 
appointments. 

We worked with our sister organisation, Healthwatch Northumberland, and 
Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust to gather views of planned changes to 
the way some outpatients appointments are delivered. We heard from 580 people 
and have shared these findings with the Trust. 

Since the launch of the Covid vaccine programme in December 2020, we have been 
supporting the delivery of the programme by informing and engaging with residents. 
We are a member of the North Tyneside Vaccine Board and work closely with the 
Public Health team, ICB North Tyneside, the services delivering vaccinations and 
community organisations. 

In Autumn 2022, people shared their experiences of the Autumn booster programme 
for Covid and flu with us. We identified that some people were struggling to get a 
vaccine, particularly in the North Shields area. We worked with the NHS and council 
to arrange mobile vaccination buses and promote these to local residents. During 
November and December, the mobile vaccine units delivered 16 sessions across 
North Tyneside and 463 people received their jabs this way.

We are working with the NHS and the Public Health team to understand 
attitudes to other vaccination programmes, particularly those aimed at older 
people and children. This activity has been funded by a grant from the ICB and 
Public Heath team.  

Northumbria Trust said 

“The findings of the report will be used to inform patient information on 
our Trust website and leaflets about the new service to ensure they get 
the information they need to make informed choices. We are also using 
the key findings to develop a new patient portal which will be launched 
later in 2023 to improve communications with patients about their 
appointments and health information.”

Page 27



12 Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

On behalf of North Tyneside’s carers’ partnership Board, and in partnership with North 
Tyneside Carer’s Centre, we have carried out two research projects to hear about 
carers’ views and experiences. 

In April 2022 we heard from 104 young carers (aged between 5 and 21) about 
their experiences over the previous 2 years. We co-produced key messages and 
recommended actions with a group of 8 young carers based on the survey results. 
An action plan is being overseen by the Carers Partnership Board focusing on 
contingency planning, teachers and other professionals’ identification and supporting 
young carers and increasing the provision of one-to-one, group and peer support. 

 

In January 2023 we heard from 681 adult carers about their experiences of caring 
in 2022. We were able to compare responses from this year to the data we gathered 
in 2021 about caring during the pandemic. We again took a co-production approach 
to the key messages and recommendations with adult carers and other members 
of the Carers Partnership Board. Our report, published during carers week, includes 10 
recommendations that will be overseen by the Carers Partnership Board.  

Carers Experiences 

“I feel I have missed out on my childhood.”

Young carer in North Tyneside, June 2022

“Carers take a huge weight off the health care system and also ensure 
kids are in school, adults are in work and we pay the price. We should be 
cared for better and given more respect in doing this.” 

North Tyneside Carer, January 2023

In response to our report in September 2021 the following actions have been 
completed: 

• A new approach to Carer’s Assessments has been introduced and a Parent 
Carer’s assessment approach has been developed. 

• A new campaign about contingency planning with carers has been launched 
using the ‘message in a bottle scheme’. 

• The GP Awards Scheme has improved the identification and support for 
carers through GP practices and 23 NorthTyneside practices have signed up. 

Page 28



13Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Equally well
On behalf of North Tyneside’s Health and Wellbeing 
Board and with grant funding from North Tyneside 
Council, we undertook a major engagement 
exercise with residents and voluntary sector 
organisations. The focus was to understand 
people’s views of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s 
draft strategy and implementation plan. Over 950 
residents and 28 organisations shared their views. 

Key themes to emerge from this consultation  
included: 

• The cost of living crisis dominated people’s thinking about health and wellbeing.

• The importance of person centred approaches that help people feel they are not 
being judged. 

• Digital inclusion is important for people and they want a choice. 

• Coordinate efforts and join up support for residents so that different organisation 
work together to tackle these issues.

Digital inclusion 
We have been championing the issues of digital inclusion, particularly since the start 
of the pandemic. We are a founding member of North Tyneside Digital Inclusion 
Working Group, a partnership of North Tyneside Council, NHS and voluntary sector 
organisations coming together to tackle this issue.

Health Inequalities 

Jessica Kinnersley co-produced  
with residents

The detailed report has been used to develop the delivery plan for 2022/3 and 
the plan for 2023/4 and helped shape the coordinated response to the cost 
of living crisis last winter, led by North Tyneside Council, including the Warm 
Welcome centres. 

A Digital Inclusion strategy for NorthTyneside has been drafted based on research 
and engagement activities with Local residents. With grant funding from the 
NHS, we led an engagement exercise into residents’ views and practical 
solutions to digital inclusion with over 500 people and 32 organisations. The 
findings form the basis for the delivery plan and future funding bids. 

This data is also being used to shape the Integrated Care Board’s digital inclusion 
strategy across the North East and North Cumbria.

Page 29



14 Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Adult Social Care 

Community Mental Health 
Transformation 

We are separately funded by North Tyneside Council, outside of our core contract, 
to support them to hear from their adult social care service users. Each month we 
interview a small number of randomly selected service users to understand how 
person centred their social care services are. The feedback is used to identify what is 
working well, what could be done better and review performance of the teams.

We also support the Inspire User Forum, which acts as a co-design reference group 
for adult social care services. 

Separately, we are undertaking a research project to capture people’s views about 
Care Homes and Covid, so that lessons can be learnt for the future. These findings 
will be published later this year. This project  has also been funded by North Tyneside 
Council. 

The NHS launched this major transformation 
programme to improve and increase mental 
health services delivered in the community 
rather than hospital. A key principle of this 
programme is involving service users families 
and carers in the co-design and co-production 
of these changes. Healthwatch North Tyneside 
has been funded to work alongside Launchpad 
North Tyneside to support involvement of 
service users and carers. 

During this year, our work has focused on 
developing plans for a new crisis support 
café in North Tyneside, improving access to 
non-medical and community support and 
increasing support in the community. The views 
of residents have also directed the priorities 
for the next year of community mental health 
transformation activity.  

Page 30



15Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Service User Voice in Decision Making 

NHS governance and decision making 
We work hard to ensure service users have a voice in the designing of services and 
the decisions which will impact on them. During this reporting year we have seen 
significant changes within NHS governance and decision making with the introduction 
of the North East and North Cumbria Integrated Care Board (ICB). 

Healthwatch North Tyneside led the discussions with the ICB, on behalf of the 
Healthwatch Network in the North East and North Cumbria, to ensure user voice 
and Healthwatch were involved in developments and decision making. We secured 
funding from the ICB to support this activity across all 14 local Healthwatch in the 
region.  

Local intelligence is collated across four sub-regional areas and shared at Area 
Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) meetings, with Healthwatch North Tyneside leading 
this work for the North ICP area. 

At regional level, our Healthwatch Network Regional Coordinator represents service-
user views from across the region at the NENC Integrated Care Partnership Strategic 
meeting, Quality & Safety Committee, Primary Care Strategy & Delivery sub-
committee, Healthy & Fairness Advisory Group, Equality, Diversity & Inclusion meetings 
and System Quality Group meetings. The Integrated Care Board Participant for the 
network is David Thompson, Chair of Healthwatch Northumberland.

The network of local Healthwatch has also been commissioned to undertake 
additional research to ensure local voices are represented in the ICB’s work priorities, 
including focus groups for the ‘Waiting Well’ campaign and consultation around the 
development of the ICB strategy. 

Health and Wellbeing Board and decision making 
Healthwatch North Tyneside is represented on the North Tyneside Health and 
Wellbeing Board by Julia Charlton, Chair, and Paul Jones, Director, of Healthwatch 
North Tyneside. We play an active role in the Health and Wellbeing Board and its 
strategic groups that deliver operational work on its behalf including the Future Care 
Board, Aging Well and Living Well Board, Carers Partnership Board and Mental Health 
boards. 

What we heard in 2022/23
We have published a summary of the views and feedback we have gathered in 
2022/23 in a special report. This provides an overview of  the key themes and issues 
people have told us about during our general engagement activities. This report only 
includes issues people have raised with us rather than our reasearch on specific 
themes.  We have shared this information with North Tyneside’s Health and Wellbeing 
Board during the year. Page 31



Volunteers
We’re supported by a team of amazing volunteers who are at 
the heart of Healthwatch North Tyneside. Thanks to their efforts, 
we’re able to identify health and social care issues as they arise 
and understand what is working and what needs improving 
within the NHS and social care.

This year our volunteers:   

• Gathered view and experiences from residents by carrying out interviews 
and surveys when visiting services, over the phone or at community venues. 

• Helped with analysing data and writing reports.

• Providing information and raising awareness of Healthwatch at community 
events.

• Supporting the smoothing running of our office.

16 Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Page 32



17Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Volunteers Cheryl
“Through hearing lived experiences I have 
learned a great deal, and feel I understand 
the issues facing health and social care 
much better on a local and national level. My 
community engagement work has reaffirmed 
my faith in people to be resilient despite great 
adversity. I find the team positive to work 
with, volunteers and staff feel equally valued 
and listened to. I love the atmosphere of 
collaboration.”

Matthew
“As a neurodivergent person I have found 
acceptance within the team and plenty of 
opportunities to explore areas and build 
networks in improving services which have a 
personal interest to me. Volunteering gives me 
a chance to get outside and be active in the 
community. I have had a chance to connect 
with people in a very meaningful way. I have 
heard local people share their personal journeys 
and seen their courage and hope.”

Maddy
“I enjoy working with the warm and welcoming 
Healthwatch team. I feel I am doing something 
useful, and it has helped me find a sense of 
belonging. Volunteering with Healthwatch is 
flexible, you can do as much or as little as you 
are able and there are a range of ways to 
contribute. No two days are the same, and I 
have loved the volunteer training and how it has 
incorporated lived experience.”

Do you feel inspired?
We are always on the lookout for new volunteers, so please get 
in touch today.

          www.hwnt.co.uk            0191 263 5321            info@hwnt.co.uk

Page 33



18 Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Finance and Future Priorities

Other funded activities

To help us carry out our work we receive funding from our local 
authority under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 to fund the core 
Healthwatch service in North Tyneside.

In addition to the above funding, we have been successful in securing additional 
funds to support specific research or engagement activities or information 
campaigns during this period. 

Before we agree to take on additional funded activity, we test that the activity fits 
with our values and ethos and doesn't compromise our independence.

• Community Mental Health Transformation, North Tyneside CCG – ongoing for two 
years. 

• Adult Social Care User Experience, North Tyneside Council - ongoing.

• Vaccine inequalities, North Tyneside Council Public Health Team – ongoing. 

• North East & North Cumbria Healthwatch ICS Network Coordination Funding  
- ongoing. 

• Equally Well Health Inequalities Strategy Engagement, North Tyneside Council. 

• Residents solutions to digital inclusions, North East and North Cumbria Integrated 
Care Board.  

Our income and expenditure

Income Expenditure

Healthwatch core 
services contract 
from North Tyneside 
Council 

£151,940 Staffing costs £122,631

Other funding towards 
core work 

£8,385 Operational costs £30,407

Governance costs £1,190

Total income £160,325 Total expenditure £154,228

Page 34



19Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Each year, we select a small number of key issues to focus some of 
our work on. These are based on what local people have told us really 
matters to them through the engagement work we do, the feedback we 
receive and our annual survey. We also discussed these with service 
providers and commissioners.

Key themes for 2023-24

Overarching themes

Specific areas 

• Experiences of Hospital to Home and service integration 

• Experiences and support for autistic adults

• Getting care when you need it – primary and urgent care 

• Audiology service 

• Travel and Transport 

• Waiting for treatment

• Carers 

• Mental health and children and young people 

The way we work

Our Healthwatch board work on a voluntary basis to provide oversight, direction, and 
scrutiny to our activities. Our board ensures that decisions about our work reflect the 
concerns and interests of our diverse local community. During this reporting year, 
our trustees were: Julia Charlton - Chair, Bea Groves-McDaniel - Vice Chair, Jackie 
Doughty – Treasurer, Judy Scott, Theresa Culpin, Dr Joanne Brown, Paula McCormack 
and Carol Nevison.

Our Work for the Year Ahead

Understanding 
Health Inequalities  

Improving access 
to information 

User voice in 
systems change 

Page 35



20 Healthwatch North Tyneside Annual Report 2022-23

Registered Charity Number 1160753

Healthwatch North Tyneside
Spirit of North Tyneside Community Hub
2nd Floor Wallsend Customer First Centre
16 The Forum
Wallsend
NE28 8JR

www.hwnt.co.uk
t: 0191 263 5321
e: info@hwnt.co.uk

 @HWNTyneside
 Facebook.com/HealthwatchNT

 healthwatchnt

 www.linkedin.com/company/healthwatch-north-tyneside

Charity number 1160753
Copyright Healthwatch North Tyneside 2022
Produced April 2022

Healthwatch North Tyneside
The Parks Sports Centre
Howdon Road
North Shields
NE29 6TL
www.healthwatchnorthtyneside.co.uk
t: 0191 263 5321
e: info@hwnt.co.uk

HWNTyneside
HealthwatchNT
healthwatchnt
linkedin.com/company/healthwatch-north-tyneside

Page 36


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Healthwatch North Tyneside - Annual report and update
	Slide 1: Summary of feedback Healthwatch North Tyneside have received from North Tyneside residents over the past 12 months.  June 2023
	Slide 2: Talk to Us
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: Feedback on Specific Services 
	Slide 6
	Slide 7: Who we Heard From 
	Slide 8
	Healthwatch Annual Review 2223


